
Board Meeting   
Agenda    
8.00 a.m. Wednesday 2 July 2025  
Waihorotiu Room, Te Pokapū Aotea Centre, 50 Mayoral Drive, Auckland 

 

  

 
1 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN  

PROCEDURAL  

1 Agenda and Apologies  To Note T & C 8.00 a.m.  30 mins 

2 Confidential Minutes 27 May 2025 and Action 
Tracker, Vicki Salmon 

To Approve T & C 

3 Board Agenda Discussion, Vicki Salmon To Discuss T & C 

CE CONFIDENTIAL UPDATE  

4 CE Confidential Update, Nick Hill To Note T & C 8.30 a.m. 1 hour 

30 mins 

BREAK 10.00 a.m. 15 mins 

THREE-YEAR PLAN 

5 Annual Plan FY26 and Capital Plan FY26, 
Justine White1 

To Approve T & C 10.15 a.m. 45 mins 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING CLOSED AND PUBLIC MEETING OPEN 

PROCEDURAL 

6 Register of Directors’ Interests and Rolling 12-
Month Board Work Programme, Vicki Salmon 

To Note T & C 11.00 a.m.  5 mins 

7 Public Minutes 27 May 2025, Vicki Salmon To Approve T & C 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 

8 Statement of Intent 25-28 Public Submissions: 

     1. Equal Justice Project  

To Discuss T & C 11.05 a.m. 40 mins 

9 Statement of Intent 25-28 – Consideration of 
Shareholder Comments, Nick Hill 

To Discuss T & C 



Board Meeting   
Agenda    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
2 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
3 S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987 
4 S7(2)(a),(d),(f)(i) LGOIMA 1987 
5 S7(2)(c)(i),(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

CE REPORT AND PERFORMANCE REPORTS 

10 CE Report, Nick Hill  

1. Financial Performance Report  
2. Capital Projects Report2 (RC) 
3. Current Operational Risks3 (RC) 

To Note T & C 11.45 a.m. 15 mins 

PUBLIC MEETING CLOSED AND CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN 

LUNCH 12.00 p.m. 30 mins 

COMMITTEE UPDATES AND APPROVAL PAPERS  

11 Board Committee Updates 
 

• Māori Engagement Committee 18 June 
2025, Hinurewa Te Hau  
 

• Capital Projects Committee 19 June 
2025, Alastair Carruthers 

To Note T & C 12.30 p.m. 15 mins 

 

NOTING PAPERS 

12 Health and Safety Report4, Lynn Johnson and 
Jade Strampel 

To Note T & C 12.45 p.m. 30 mins 

13 Annual Reporting Update2, Justine White To Note  T & C 

APPROVAL PAPERS 

14 TAU Capital Programme, Justine White: 

1. Business Cases: 
 

a. Town Hall Clock Tower 
Conservation Works2 
 

b. Zoo Rangitupu Masterplan Stage 3 
Enabling Works / Infrastructure2 

To Approve T 1.15 p.m. 1 hour 

15 mins 

15 North Harbour Stadium Expression of Interest, 
North Harbour Stadium Steering Group5, Nick 
Hill and Justine White 

To Approve T 

 Close of Meeting   2.30 p.m.   



Board Meeting   
Agenda    

 
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 Section 7(2) 
 
Subject to sections 6, 8, and 17, this section applies if, and only if, the withholding of the 
information is necessary to— 
 
(a) protect the privacy of natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons; or 
 
(b)  protect information where the making available of the information— 
 

(i) would disclose a trade secret; or 
 

(ii) would be likely unreasonably to prejudice the commercial position of the person 
who supplied or who is the subject of the information; or 

 
(ba) in the case only of an application for a resource consent, or water conservation order, 

or a requirement for a designation or heritage order, under the Resource 
Management Act 1991, to avoid serious offence to tikanga Maori, or to avoid the 
disclosure of the location of waahi tapu; or 

 
(c)  protect information which is subject to an obligation of confidence or which any 

person has been or could be compelled to provide under the authority of any 
enactment, where the making available of the information— 

 
(i) would be likely to prejudice the supply of similar information, or 

information from the same source, and it is in the public 
interest that such information should continue to be supplied; 
or 

 
(ii) would be likely otherwise to damage the public interest; or 

 
(d)  avoid prejudice to measures protecting the health or safety of members of the public; 

or 
 
(e)  avoid prejudice to measures that prevent or mitigate material loss to members of the 

public; or 
 
(f)  maintain the effective conduct of public affairs through— 
 

(i) the free and frank expression of opinions by or between or to members or 
officers or employees of any local authority, or any persons to whom section 
2(5) applies, in the course of their duty; or 

 
(ii) the protection of such members, officers, employees, and persons from 

improper pressure or harassment; or 
 
(g)  maintain legal professional privilege; or 
 
(h)  enable any local authority holding the information to carry out, without prejudice or 

disadvantage, commercial activities; or 
 
(i)  enable any local authority holding the information to carry on, without prejudice or 

disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial negotiations); or 
 
(j)  prevent the disclosure or use of official information for improper gain or improper 

advantage. 
 
 



 

  

June 2025 

   
 

Name Position Directorships/Trusteeships Other Interests Possible Conflicts 

Vicki Salmon  Chair  ● Coopers Creek Vineyard Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Salmon and Partners Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Remuera Golf Club (President) 
● Greenhills Forest GP Limited (Shareholder) 

 ● Prior to Vicki Salmon’s appointment as Chair of 
Tātaki Auckland Unlimited, Vicki was a member 
of the Eden Park Trust Board (EPTB). Vicki 
resigned as a member of the EPTB on 27 March 
2023 and no longer has any interest in EPTB or 
the Eden Park organisation.  

Jennah Wootten Deputy Chair ● Perpetual Guardian Holdings Limited (Director) 
● Perpetual Trust Limited (Director) 
● Generate Global (Director and Shareholder) 
● National Facilities Advisory Group (Member) 

● Aktive – Auckland Sports & Recreation 
(CEO) 

 

Alastair Carruthers Non-Executive Director ● Homeland NZ Enterprises Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Homeland NZ Trading Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Carruthers Consulting Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Television New Zealand Ltd (Chair) 
● Cornwall Park Trust Board (Trustee) 
● Auckland University of Technology (AUT) 

Foundation (Trustee) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director) 
● Auckland Regional Amenities Funding Board 

(Board Member) 
● Auckland War Memorial Museum Trust Board 

(Deputy Chair) 
● Museum of Transport and Technology Board 

(Director) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

● The ARAFB provides operating funding to some 
entities who occupy and perform in Tātaki 
Auckland Unlimited facilities. 

● Homeland hosts events for Auckland Convention 
Bureau and other Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 
funded entities from time to time.   
 

Carol Cheng Non-Executive Director ● Teaching Council New Zealand (Governing 
Council Member) 

● Hong Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● CYWE Trustee Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Auckland International Airport Limited 
(Shareholder) 

● Spark New Zealand Limited (Shareholder) 
● Comvita Limited (Shareholder) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● The Asia New Zealand Foundation Te Whītau 

Tūhono (Trustee) 

 ● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Auckland Culture Festivals  

● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Guo Pei Exhibition at the 
Auckland Art Gallery. 

 



 

  

Hinurewa Te Hau (Hinu) Non-Executive Director ● Tamaki Makaurau Matariki Festival Trust (trading 
as Matariki Cultural Foundation) (Trustee) 

● Matariki Global Holdings Limited (Director) 
● Taamaki Records Limited (Director) 
● Otamatea Pioneer & Kauri Museum Board (Chair) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director) 
● Harbourview Properties Limited (Shareholder) 

● Co-ordinator of WOMEX (World Music 
Expo) Pan Indigenous Network 

 

Graeme Stephens Non-Executive Director ● New Zealand Hotel Holdings (Director)  
(this interest includes directorships of several 
further entities connected with New Zealand Hotel 
Holdings) 

● Kamari Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Marama Hua Trustee Limited (Director) 
● Rakaunui Property Limited (Director)   
● Rakaunui Property Holdings Limited (Director) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group (Shareholder) 

  

Dan Te Whenua Walker Non-Executive Director ● New Zealand Māori Tourism Society (Deputy 
Chair) 

● Korowai Hikuroa Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 
Council (Director) 

● Māori Creative Foundation (Trustee) 
● Meremere Marae Charitable Trust (Trustee) 
● Hikuroa Whanaungatanga Charitable Trust 

(Trustee) 
● Stanmore Bay Primary School (Chair) 
● University of Auckland Māori Alumni (Trustee and 

Chair of Executive Committee) 
● Sarcoma Foundation NZ (Board member) 
● Child Cancer Foundation (Board member) 

 
 

 

 



June 2025 

 

  

 

 
Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 

Business Planning 
Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jan-25 • Financial reporting for the ½ Year 
ended 31 December 2024 

• Q2 Risk Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Western Springs Stadium EOI 
Workshop 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 24 Jan (½Y 
Accounts) 

• Board Meeting – 29 Jan (½Y Acts)  

Feb-25 • Letter of Expectation 

• Q2 Performance Report  

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Strategy Session – 19 Feb 

• Workshop: New Zealand Maritime 
Museum Masterplan 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – 19 Feb 

• Remuneration Committee – 20 Feb 

• Board Meeting – 4 March (Feb meeting) 

Mar-25 • Draft 2025 -2028 Statement of 
Intent 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Auditor engagement 
and fees 

• Major Events Commitments Review • Māori Engagement Committee – 14 March 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 19 March 

• Board Meeting – 26 March 
 

Apr-25 • Q3 Risk Report to Council 

• Q3 Performance Report  

• MOTAT Director Appointments 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Evaluation 
(biennial – next due: 
2026) 

• TAU Name and Branding 

• Council Major Events and Destination 
Strategy Development 

• NZMM Master Plan Design 
Development for Stages 1 & 2  

 

• Capital Projects Committee – 16 April 

• Board Meeting – 30 April 

May-25 • CCO Reform Transition Programme 
Workstream One: Economic 
Development Office 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• TAU Board and North Harbour 
Stadium Steering Group Meeting: 
NHS Stage 2 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 14 May 

• Board Meeting – 27 May 

 

Jun-25 • Public Board meeting - shareholder 
feedback on SOI 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Annual insurance 
renewal 

• Annual Plan and Capital Plan FY25 

• Three Year Plan  

• NHS Expression of Interest  

 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 18 June 

• Capital Projects Committee – 24 June 

• Board Meeting – 2 July (Public Board Meeting) 

 
 
 
 



June 2025 

 

  

 

Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 
Business Planning 

Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jul-25 • SOI FY26 

• TAU End of Year Financial 
Reporting Packs 

• Q4 Risk Report to Council 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Workshop: Performing Arts 

 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 17 July 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 23 July 

• Board Meeting – 30 July 

Aug-25 • Q4 Performance Report 

• TAUL and TAUT Annual Report 

• Financial reporting for the year 
ended 30 June 2025 

• Climate Related Disclosures  
 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Workshop: Auckland Stadiums 

 

• Remuneration Committee – 12 August 

• Capital Projects Committee – 13 August 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 21 August (FY25 
Statements) 

• Board Meeting – 26 August 

Sep-25  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

  

Oct-25 • Public Board meeting - performance 
against SOI targets for Year Ended 
30 June 2025 

• Q1 Performance Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

• Workshop: Auckland Zoo 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – 14 Oct 

• Board Meeting – 29 Oct (Public Board Meeting) 

Nov-25 • Q1 Risk Report to Council • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 
 

 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 12 Nov 

• Board Meeting – 2 Dec (Nov Meeting) 

 

Dec-25  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

  

 



 

 

 

BOARD MEETING 

HELD ON:   Wednesday 27 May 2025 at 8.00 a.m. 

AT:  Waihorotiu Room, L4 Te Pokapū Aotea Centre, Auckland 
 
PRESENT:  Vicki Salmon   Chair 
   Jennah Wootten Deputy Chair 

Alastair Carruthers  
Carol Cheng  
Graeme Stephens  (Teams) 
Dan Walker 

 
   Desley Simpson Deputy Mayor and Lead Councillor 
 
APOLOGIES: Hinurewa Te Hau 
      

ATTENDED:            Executive Team Nick Hill Chief Executive (Teams), Kevin Buley 

Director Auckland Zoo, Daniel Clarke Director 
Performing Arts, Annie Dundas Director Destination, 
Pam Ford Director Economic Development, Tom 
Irvine Acting Director Auckland Art Gallery, Lynn 
Johnson Chief People Officer, Mandy Kennedy Chief 
Digital Officer, Helen Te Hira Director Māori 
Outcomes, Shelley Watson Director Marketing, 
Comms & Growth, Justine White Chief Operating 
Officer 

 
Tim Kingsley-Smith Company Secretary & Legal Counsel 
Sarah Johnstone-Smith CCO Governance, Council 
Max Hardy   Director Group Strategy and CE Office, Council 
Clare Barker  Head of Brand & Creative 
Georgina Cervin Commercial Programme Lead 
Alexis Poppelbaum  Chair, Hibiscus and Bays Local Board 
Anna Atkinson   Chair, Upper Harbour Local Board 
Usra Balouch   Dep. Chair, Upper Harbour Local Board (Teams) 
Lesley Jenkins   Area Manager, Hibiscus & Bays and Upper Harbour 
Peter Ashdown  Director, PriceWaterhouseCoopers (Teams) 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Nick Hill, Justine White, and Tim Kingsley-Smith joined the meeting. 
 

1. AGENDA AND APOLOGIES  

 
The Chair opened the confidential meeting and a karakia was recited.  
 
The Chair noted the apology of Hinurewa Te Hau.  
 

2. 15 APRIL 2025 AND 30 APRIL 2025 CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES AND ACTION TRACKER 
 
The Board requested four amendments to the confidential 30 April 2025 minutes: 
 

o P.2 CE Confidential Update 1st bullet point – simplified 1st sentence  
o P.2 CE Confidential Update 4th bullet point – 2nd sentence word change and split sentence 
o P.4 MOTAT Director Appointments 1st bullet point – 2nd sentence added 
o P.4 MOTAT Director Appointments 3rd bullet point – 1st sentence word added  

 
Subject to the amendments discussed being made, the Board:  
 

1. Approved the 15 April 2025 confidential minutes subject to further final review by the Chair, 
Management, and Council Legal;  





• Management noted that Tom Irvine has been appointed as the acting director of the Auckland
Art Gallery.

• Management provided an update on the restructuring of Council Group event delivery.
Auckland has never had an over-arching event provider, and several brands/entities delivering
various events across the Group has tended to weaken event attribution to Council. There is
an opportunity to realise efficiencies by having a single event activation centre, but if TAU is to
take a greater role in event delivery across the Group, it will be important that it is provided with
the appropriate resources to successfully fulfil that role.

The Board noted the update. 

The Chair closed the confidential meeting and opened the public meeting. 

The Executive Team, Deputy Mayor Desley Simpson, Sarah Johnstone-Smith, and Melanya Burrows 
joined the meeting. 

5. REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND ROLLING 12-MONTH BOARD WORK 
PROGRAMME

The Board noted the Interests Register and the 12-Month Board Work Programme

6. PUBLIC MINUTES 30 APRIL 2025

Subject to the amendments to the minutes discussed at Item 2 being made to the public minutes, the 

Board approved the 30 April 2025 public minutes as an accurate record of the meeting.

7. CE REPORT

The Board congratulated Tom Irvine on his appointment as acting director of the Auckland Art Gallery. 
Mr Irvine thanked the Board and noted that he is very excited about the role. The Board recognised 
Kirsten Lacy for her leadership at Gallery over the last six years which has included difficult challenges 

such as guiding the Gallery through COVID-19 and TAU amalgamation.

The Executive Team spoke to the paper.

• The Board and Management discussed the performance of TAU over the previous month.

o Go Media Stadium (GMS) continues to be busy with the Auckland FC semi-final on 
Saturday followed by a record-breaking NZ Warriors crowd on Sunday. While Auckland 
FC lost its semi-final, it was confirmed earlier this week that GMS is seen as the A-League 
stadium with the “best atmosphere” over the full season as voted by A-League players. 
North Harbour Stadium (NHS) has had an excellent year with visitation significantly up 
on last year thanks to increased activity including Moana Pasifika having their strongest 
season to date. Moana Pasifika, Auckland FC and North Harbour Rugby have all 
provided positive feedback on their experience at NHS over the last year.

Vicki Salmon re-joined the meeting at 10.51 a.m. 

o There is a currently a significant number of TAU marketing campaigns in market or about
to go to market including campaigns for the cabaret season at the Civic, the dinosaur
exhibit at the Zoo and the “it’s on in Auckland” destination campaign which is supported
by funding from the City Centre Targeted Rate. Heart of the City is also aligning its
marketing to the “it’s on in Auckland” campaign.

o The recent Auckland Writer’s Festival was very successful with excellent feedback
received from authors and attendees. The Aotea Centre is a great venue for this type of
event, and it remains a very popular event with patrons.

o The Te Puna Creative Hub was formally opened with Te Kawerau a Maki on the 14th of
May and is moving from strength to strength. The fitout is close to completion, the studio
space is being regularly licenced, and new tenants have moved in. There are also new
developments in the wider precinct supported by private investors which is encouraging.



o Auckland Zoo continues to work closely with the Department of Conservation on
supporting endangered NZ species including wētāpunga (giant Wētā), several sub-
species of skink, and the Hamilton’s frog. Season 3 of Wild Heroes – a TV series that
follows the Zoo and its activities – is currently screening on TV3 and the Zoo is excited
about opening the dinosaur exhibition at night with a new “Dinosaur Nights & Lights”
experience.

o Pleasingly, the New Zealand Maritime Museum’s (NZMM) school programme is currently
fully booked and NZMM is on target to achieve its school visitation target for the year.
NZMM has several exciting ‘pop-up’ exhibitions on now but is entering the traditional
‘slow’ season for visitation.

o TAU’s recent Hui Whakamarama event was successful and received positive feedback
from attendees. The Sites and Areas of Significance to Māori hearing took place last
Wednesday and there were no objections with 17 Tāmaki Makaurau iwi supportive of the
proposed changes.

o Although ticketed visitation at Auckland Art Gallery is slightly down on the target for the
year to date, an exciting blockbuster exhibition A Century of Modern Art is about to open
so there is optimism that visitation will pick up in response. The Gallery remains a special
place with a special Kaupapa and it has an exciting programme of activity ahead of it.

• The Board noted that Auckland Zoo staff often travel outside the Zoo to undertake conservation
work in remote locations and requested that the Zoo work with the health and safety team to
review how ‘high risk’ projects are developed and reviewed prior to being formally approved
and whether the Board should have a role to play in the process. (ACTION POINT)

• The Board noted that this is Pam Ford’s last TAU board meeting before the economic
development team is transferred to Council and thanked Pam for her strong advocacy and
leadership of economic development at ATEED and TAU.

The Board thanked the Executive Team and noted the update 

The Executive Team and Melanya Burrows left the meeting. Max Hardy joined the meeting. 

The Chair closed the public meeting and opened the confidential meeting.  

8. CCO REFORM TRANSITION PROGRAMME: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OFFICE

Max Hardy presented to the Board.

• Mr Hardy acknowledged TAU’s work for Tāmaki Makaurau and the positive and professional
engagement of TAU, Pam Ford and the economic development team with the current CCO
reform process.

• My Hardy noted that at the direction of the Mayor and Councillors, Council is deliberately
stepping into a greater strategic role in several areas such as economic development and major
events. While this will create some uncertainty during the transition, ultimately Council taking a
greater strategic role and working more closely with the Council Group, will be a positive change
that uses existing resources more efficiently.

•

•

S7(2)(f)(i),(i) LGOIMA 1987





• Management updated the Board on the NHS Expression of Interest (EOI) process.

•

The Board noted the update. 

Alexis Poppelbaum, Anna Atkinson, Usra Balouch, Lesley Jenkins and Peter Ashdown joined the 
meeting. 

14. TAU BOARD AND NORTH HARBOUR STADIUM STEERING GROUP MEETING NHS STAGE 2

Alexis Poppelbaum, Anna Atkinson and Usra Balouch presented to the Board.

• The NHS Steering Group updated the Board on the NHS EOI process Stage 1 and thanked
TAU and Council for supporting the process. Feedback has been sought and received from
NHS tenants and users. There has been a wide spectrum of interest shown in NHS and the
future opportunities of the precinct which bodes well for the future of the precinct.

• Management noted that the NHS EOI process has been a good process with the Steering
Group, stakeholders and TAU working well together to support the Steering Group-led process.
There will be plenty of interest in the decisions of the Steering Group so it will be important to
be clear about the key data and rationale behind its decisions.

The Board thanked the NHS Steering Group for attending the meeting and noted the update.

The meeting ended at 2.34 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for 2 July 2025. 

_____________________ _______________________ 
Chair Date 

S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 1 
 

 
 
 

 

Consideration of Shareholder Comments on Draft 
Statement of Intent 2025-28 
Report to the Board of Tātaki Auckland Unlimited  
 
 
Meeting date  2 July 2025 
Author James Robinson, Head of Strategy and Planning 
Approved by Justine White, Chief Operating Officer 
Purpose of paper  
Company and/or Trust paper 

For Noting 
Company and Trust 

Proposed resolution  That the Board: 
 
1. Note the proposed approach to responding to 

shareholder comments on the draft TAU Statement 
of Intent 2025-28 and provide feedback. 
 

2. Note that the changes proposed in this paper will 
be reflected in the final TAU SOI 2025-28, which 
will come to the board for final approval at the July 
meeting. 

 
 
 
The purpose of this paper is to consider a proposed approach to responding to shareholder 
comments on the draft Tātaki Auckland Unlimited (TAU) Statement of Intent (SOI) 2025-28. 

 
 
 
On 22 May 2025, the TAU Chair received a letter from Mayor Wayne Brown providing 
shareholder comments on the draft TAU SOI 2025-28.  Both the letter providing the 
comments (Attachment 1) and the draft TAU SOI 2025-28 submitted to Auckland Council on 
1 April 2025 (Attachment 3) are appended to this report. 
 
As part of the statutory process of developing and finalising our SOI, TAU is required to hold 
a public board meeting to consider shareholder comments. 
 
Management have reviewed the shareholder comments and developed a proposed 
approach for responding to them (Attachment 2).   
 
Following consideration of the shareholder comments and agreement on the proposed 
approach to responding to them, the final TAU SOI 2025-28 will be finalised and circulated 
to the board prior to approval at the July board meeting on 30 July. The final TAU SOI 2025-
28 is due to Auckland Council on or before 1 August 2025. 
 
 

BACKGROUND − He  Whakamārama  
 

PURPOSE −  Te  Pū take  
 
 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 2 
 

 
 
 
Shareholder comments regarding alignment to LTP financials are addressed in Attachment 
2. 
 
 
 
Not applicable 

 
 
The consideration of shareholder comments in a public board meeting is a statutory 
requirement of the Local Government Act. 
 
 
 
The Climate Change and Sustainability team have been consulted on proposed responses 
to the shareholder comments relating to climate change in Attachment 2. 
 
 
 
Shareholder feedback regarding Māori Outcomes including the refresh of our Māori 
Outcomes Plan – Te Mahere Aronga and the inclusion of a diverse procurement KPI and 
target have been discussed with the Māori Outcomes team and are addressed in 
Attachment 2. 

 
 
 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board: 

1. Note the proposed approach to responding to shareholder comments on the draft TAU 
Statement of Intent 2025-28 and provide feedback. 

2. Note that the changes proposed in this paper will be reflected in the final TAU SOI 
2025-28, which will come to the board for final approval at the July meeting. 

 

Written by: Reviewed by:  

 

James Robinson 
Head of Strategy and Planning  

 
Justine White 
Chief Operating Officer 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION − Ngā Tūtohunga 

 

RISK − Ngā  Tū ra ru  
 

FINANCIAL  − Ngā  take  pū tea  

LEGAL −  Ngā  take  tu re  
 

MĀORI  OUTCOMES −  Ngā  Aronga  Māor i   
 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY − Hurihanga Āhuarangi me te Toitūtanga 

 

MARKETING,  COMMS,  GROWTH & LEVERAGE − Whaka ta i ranga ,  
Pāpāho ,  Whanake tanga ,  me  te  huanga   



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 3 
 

ATTACHMENT SCHEDULE  

Attachment 1 Auckland Council Shareholder Comments on Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 
draft Statement of Intent 2025-2028  

Attachment 2  Proposed approach to responding to shareholder comments 

Attachment 3 Draft Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Statement of Intent 2025-28 (as submitted 
to Auckland Council on 1 April 2025) 

 

 



 

 
Private Bag 92300, Auckland 1142 | aucklandcouncil.govt.nz | Ph 09 301 0101 

22  May 2025 

 

 

Vicki Salmon 

Chair  

Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 

 
Via email:    v.salmon@xtra.co.nz   
   

Tēnā koe Vicki 

 
Shareholder comments on the draft Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Statement of Intent 2025-2028 
 

Thank you for providing the draft Statement of Intent 2025-2028 (SOI) for Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 

(TAU). The CCO Direction and Oversight Committee considered it at its 13 May 2025 meeting.  

For reference – the hyperlink to the committee item is available here: 
https://infocouncil.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz/Open/2025/05/20250513_CDOCC_AGN_11527.htm#PDF2_ReportNa

me_106812 
 

Below are shareholder comments common to all CCOs and following that the shareholder comments 

specific to TAU. 
 

I would like to thank you and the board for your work on the draft SOI.  

 

General shareholder comments to all CCOs 

i) Alignment to final 2025/2026 Annual Plan 

Final SOIs should reflect 2025/2026 Annual Plan decisions and any adjustments to reflect CCO reform 

changes. Financial forecasts in the SOI should align with those submitted to council for the Annual 

Plan. We expect consistent figures for 2025/2026 and the projections for 2026/2027 and 2027/2028.  
 

Furthermore, CCOs should ensure ensure that performance measure targets are fully populated in 

their final SOIs and that measures and targets reflect those in the Long-term Plan 2024-2034. 

 

ii) Better Value Projects programme 

Final SOIs should include a statement on how the ten delivery principles of the Better Value Projects 

programme will be applied. CCOs are expected to provide case studies of projects when requested to 

the Revenue, Expenditure and Value Committee and report to council on their progress with capital 

spend reviews, learnings and improvements.   

mailto:v.salmon@xtra.co.nz
https://infocouncil.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz/Open/2025/05/20250513_CDOCC_AGN_11527.htm#PDF2_ReportName_106812
https://infocouncil.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz/Open/2025/05/20250513_CDOCC_AGN_11527.htm#PDF2_ReportName_106812


Page 2 of 4 
 

 

In addition, through the regular quarterly reporting process, CCOs should report progress on 

milestones for the key capital programmes/projects set out in their SOI. 
 

iii) Group shared services 

Final SOIs should unequivocally commit to Group Shared Services and agreed processes (in particular 

Auckland Transport and Watercare). 

 

iv) Outcomes for Māori 

Final SOIs should include a statement on how the needs and aspirations of Māori have been reflected 

in the CCO’s planned activities and deliverables based on Kia Ora Tāmaki Makaurau, Houkura Issues 

of Significance or CCOs’ own engagement with Māori. 

Additionally, CCOs should refresh their Achieving Māori Outcomes (AMO) Plans as applicable, to 

account for functional changes from CCO reform, the new Issues of Significance from Houkura and 

refreshed Kia Ora Tāmaki Makaurau framework. 

 

Specific shareholder comments for TAU 

v) Alignment to 2025/2026 letter of expectations 

The draft SOI envisages an expanded events delivery and activation function to reflect a more 

coordinated council events approach – as per the CCO reform decisions and the 2025/2026 letter of 

expectations.  Final decisions on the CCO Reform Transition Workstream One change proposals have 

now been released.  In the final SOI, TAU should reflect decisions from the CCO Reform Transition 

Workstream One change proposals, particularly regarding events and activations. 

 

The alliance of council funded cultural organisations and TAU expectation is captured in the draft SOI, 

noting that shared key performance indicators for the alliance of cultural organisations will be 

progressed during 2025/2026.  In the final SOI, TAU should reflect in the one-year work programme the 

development of and agreement to these indicators, in time for these to be incorporated in the 

organisations’ 2026/2027 Annual Plans. 
 

vi) Performance measures 

The draft SOI proposes three new performance measures:  
 

i) cost-benefit ratio of major events investment, 

ii) discover Auckland website sessions (www.aucklandnz.com),  

iii) TAU performing arts and conventions venue utilisation.  

 

 

http://www.aucklandnz.com/


Page 3 of 4 
 

 

In the final SOI, for these new measures TAU should explore if existing council methodologies in 

similar areas can be utilised, or New Zealand Major Events cost-benefit analysis (CBA) methodology 

for events.  

 

The draft SOI also contains a measure ‘percentage of critical TAU assets in acceptable condition’ with 

2025-2028 targets of 95 per cent.  In the final SOI TAU should update this measure to align to the 

condition grading system used across the council group. This would mean changing 'acceptable' 

condition to 'fair to very good’.  

 

In the final SOI, TAU should ensure it fully populates targets for FY26-28 for the ‘contribution to 

regional GDP from major events and business events attracted or supported’ (LTP measure), reflecting 

2025/2026 Annual Plan decisions. 

 

TAU should also consider bringing current Te Mahera Aronga measure on ‘percentage of goods and 

services spend on diverse suppliers (Māori suppliers, Pacific suppliers, Social Enterprise suppliers)’ 

into the final SOI performance measure set. 

 

vii) Clarifications on one-year work programme 

The draft SOI refers in several places to the Aotea Arts Quarter and the Western Springs precinct but is 

unclear on the role TAU is specifically undertaking in these areas. The draft SOI also includes 

reference to ‘developing a Māori performing arts strategy’. 

 

In the final SOI, TAU should provide greater clarification of TAU’s specific role in Aotea Arts Quarter 

and Western Springs precinct activities within the one-year work programme and further clarification on 

the scope of TAU’s work developing a Māori Performing Arts Strategy within the one-year work 

programme (understood to be for Auckland Live venues). 

 

The draft SOI includes a table of key capital projects in 2025/2026 and number of milestones 

associated with each, however the link between these projects and the one-year work programme 

deliverables could be strengthened.  In the final SOI, TAU should establish stronger connections and 

descriptions between the key capital projects table and one-year work programme specific deliverables 

for 2025/2026 (e.g. Zoo Masterplan Stage 3 Phase 1, Go Media Stadium renewals, repairs and 

upgrades). 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Council staff will work closely with your staff to ensure these shareholder comments are clear, and to 

relay any feedback from the CCO Direction and Oversight Committee 13 May meeting that relates to 

performance or operational issues, or issues of detail or wording.  

  

I look forward to receiving the final SOI by 31 July 2025.    

  

 

Ngā mihi  

  

  

  

   

   

Wayne Brown  

Mayor of Auckland  
 
 
 
 
Copy to:  Deputy Mayor, Desley Simpson and Lead Councillor Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 

Councillor Shane Henderson, Chair CCO Direction and Oversight Committee  
Councillor Kerrin Leoni, Deputy Chair CCO Direction and Oversight Committee  
Phil Wilson, Chief Executive, Auckland Council  
Nick Hill, Chief Executive, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 
Justine White, Chief Operating Officer, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited  

 
 
 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 1 
 

Attachment 2:  Proposed approach to responding to shareholder comments  

Feedback Proposed Response 

General shareholder comments to all CCOs 

 Alignment to final 2025/2026 Annual Plan 

Final SOIs should reflect 2025/2026 Annual 
Plan decisions and any adjustments to 
reflect CCO reform changes. Financial 
forecasts in the SOI should align with those 
submitted to council for the Annual Plan. We 
expect consistent figures for 2025/2026 and 
the projections for 2026/2027 and 
2027/2028. 

All financials will reflect final Annual 
Plan decisions including adjustments to 
budgets associated with CCO Reform. 

Furthermore, CCOs should ensure that 
performance measure targets are fully 
populated in their final SOIs and that 
measures and targets reflect those in the 
Long-term Plan 2024-2034. 

All targets will be fully populated 
however targets relating to major event 
activity will differ to those in the LTP 
due to uncertainty related to future 
major events funding.  This has been 
discussed and agreed with Auckland 
Council. 

 Better Value Projects programme 

Final SOIs should include a statement on 
how the ten delivery principles of the Better 
Value Projects programme will be applied. 
CCOs are expected to provide case studies of 
projects when requested to the Revenue, 
Expenditure and Value Committee and report 
to council on their progress with capital 
spend reviews, learnings and improvements. 

The TAU draft SOI included reference to 
the ten delivery principles.  This will be 
expanded and reviewed to directly 
reference the Better Value Projects 
programme. 

In addition, through the regular quarterly 
reporting process, CCOs should report 
progress on milestones for the key capital 
programmes/projects set out in their SOI. 

This commitment will be included in the 
final SOI. 

Group shared services 

Final SOIs should unequivocally commit to 
Group Shared Services and agreed processes 
(in particular Auckland Transport and 
Watercare). 

The TAU draft SOI included a 
commitment to shared services. 

Outcomes for Māori 

Final SOIs should include a statement on 
how the needs and aspirations of Māori have 
been reflected in the CCO’s planned 
activities and deliverables based on Kia Ora 

The TAU draft SOI included a number of 
statements reflecting our commitment 
to the delivery of Māori outcomes.  
These will be reviewed and aligned to 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 2 
 

Tāmaki Makaurau, Houkura Issues of 
Significance or CCOs’ own engagement with 
Māori.  

the new Tamaki Ora framework 
(previously Kia Ora Tamaki Makaurau).  

Additionally, CCOs should refresh their 
Achieving Māori Outcomes (AMO) Plans as 
applicable, to account for functional changes 
from CCO reform, the new Issues of 
Significance from Houkura and refreshed Kia 
Ora Tāmaki Makaurau framework. 

The final SOI will include a commitment 
to refresh our Achieving Māori Outcomes 
Plan, Te Mahere Aronga. 

Specific shareholder comments for Tātaki  Auckland Unlimited. 

Alignment to 2025/2026 letter of expectations 

The draft SOI envisages an expanded events 
delivery and activation function to reflect a 
more coordinated council events approach – 
as per the CCO reform decisions and the 
2025/2026 letter of expectations. Final 
decisions on the CCO Reform Transition 
Workstream One change proposals have now 
been released. In the final SOI, TAU should 
reflect decisions from the CCO Reform 
Transition Workstream One change 
proposals, particularly regarding events and 
activations.  

The final SOI will be updated to reflect 
the anticipated expanded events 
programming, promotion, delivery and 
activation function outlined through the 
final CCO Reform decisions, including 
the remit to deliver all city centre 
events.  

The alliance of council funded cultural 
organisations and TAU expectation is 
captured in the draft SOI, noting that shared 
key performance indicators for the alliance of 
cultural organisations will be progressed 
during 2025/2026. In the final SOI, TAU 
should reflect in the one-year work 
programme the development of and 
agreement to these indicators, in time for 
these to be incorporated in the 
organisations’ 2026/2027 Annual Plans. 

The final SOI will be updated to include 
a commitment to work with the alliance 
of council funded cultural organisations 
to incorporate a set of common KPIs in 
their 2026/27 Annual Plans. 

Performance measures 

The draft SOI proposes three new 
performance measures:  

i) cost-benefit ratio of major events 
investment,  

ii) discover Auckland website sessions 
(www.aucklandnz.com),  

iii) TAU performing arts and conventions 
venue utilisation.  

In relation to each of the new 
performance measures: 

i) TAU uses the same provider as NZ 
Major Events to calculate the cost-
benefit ratio of major events and we 
are therefore confident that the 
methodology is consistent.  The 
proposed new measure and target 
will also be discussed with the 
Auckland Council Chief Economist. 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 3 
 

In the final SOI, for these new measures TAU 
should explore if existing council 
methodologies in similar areas can be 
utilised, or New Zealand Major Events cost-
benefit analysis (CBA) methodology for 
events.  

ii) Discover Auckland website sessions 
will be measured via Google 
Analytics.  This is a very standard 
and widely used approach. 

iii) Management have worked with  
Auckland Council staff responsible 
for measuring the utilisation of 
council community facilities.  We are 
confident that methodologies are 
broadly consistent, but that there is 
limited opportunity to ‘use’ the 
council methodology. 

The draft SOI also contains a measure 
‘percentage of critical TAU assets in 
acceptable condition’ with 2025-2028 targets 
of 95 per cent. In the final SOI TAU should 
update this measure to align to the condition 
grading system used across the council 
group. This would mean changing 
'acceptable' condition to 'fair to very good’.  

The wording of the measure will be 
updated to align with the grading system 
used across the council group.  This is a 
wording change only and will not impact 
the current methodology or target. 

In the final SOI, TAU should ensure it fully 
populates targets for FY26-28 for the 
‘contribution to regional GDP from major 
events and business events attracted or 
supported’ (LTP measure), reflecting 
2025/2026 Annual Plan decisions.  

Targets relating to major and business  
event activity will be fully populated but 
will differ to those in the LTP due to 
uncertainty regarding future major 
events funding.  This has been discussed 
and agreed with Auckland Council. 

TAU should also consider bringing current Te 
Mahera Aronga measure on ‘percentage of 
goods and services spend on diverse 
suppliers (Māori suppliers, Pacific suppliers, 
Social Enterprise suppliers)’ into the final SOI 
performance measure set. 

It is proposed that the new measure is 
included in the final SOI.  This has been 
discussed and agreed with the TAU 
Māori Engagement Committee.  Initially, 
the target will be set at 8% which is 
reflective of current achievement levels 
(Council’s current target is 5%), but with 
an aspiration to grow this to 10% over 
the medium term. 

Clarifications on one-year work programme 

The draft SOI refers in several places to the 
Aotea Arts Quarter and the Western Springs 
precinct but is unclear on the role TAU is 
specifically undertaking in these areas. The 
draft SOI also includes reference to 
‘developing a Māori performing arts 
strategy’.  

In the final SOI, TAU should provide greater 
clarification of TAU’s specific role in Aotea 
Arts Quarter and Western Springs precinct 

The final SOI will provide further detail 
regarding these specified programmes. 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 4 
 

activities within the one-year work 
programme and further clarification on the 
scope of TAU’s work developing a Māori 
Performing Arts Strategy within the one-year 
work programme (understood to be for 
Auckland Live venues). 

The draft SOI includes a table of key capital 
projects in 2025/2026 and number of 
milestones associated with each, however 
the link between these projects and the one-
year work programme deliverables could be 
strengthened. In the final SOI, TAU should 
establish stronger connections and 
descriptions between the key capital projects 
table and one-year work programme specific 
deliverables for 2025/2026 (e.g. Zoo 
Masterplan Stage 3 Phase 1, Go Media 
Stadium renewals, repairs and upgrades). 

The table of key capital projects and 
milestones will be reviewed to align with 
the final Capital Programme for 2025/26 
as recently approved by the Capital 
Committee.  Descriptions of key capital 
projects in the One-Year Work 
Programme will also be reviewed to align 
with the approved programme of work. 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://aklcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/ATEEDGOV/ATEED%20Strategic%20Planning/Statement%20of%20Intent%202024-27/DRAFT%20Tataki%20Auckland%20Unlimited%20SOI%202024-27_1%20April%202024.docx#_Toc161914036
https://aklcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/ATEEDGOV/ATEED%20Strategic%20Planning/Statement%20of%20Intent%202024-27/DRAFT%20Tataki%20Auckland%20Unlimited%20SOI%202024-27_1%20April%202024.docx#_Toc161914042


• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



 

 

 

 

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



─

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  



• 

• 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

https://aklcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/who-we-are/SitePages/our-strategies-plans.aspx


• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 



• 

• 

• 

• 

 



   

http://www.aucklandunlimited.com/
http://www.aucklandunlimited.com/


 



    



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

•  

• 

• 

• 

•    

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

https://www.aucklandnz.com/sites/build_auckland/files/media-library/documents/tamaki-makaurau-he-aratohu-auckland-playbook-pdf.pdf


• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  



 

 

•   

 

•   

 

• 
   

  

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

•   

• 

 

•  

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: the budget and metrics above are subject to further decisions regarding the future of North Harbour Stadium and Western 

Springs Stadium..
 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

71,400 

 

 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

 
 

  

 

  

 



 



http://www.aucklandnz.com/
http://www.aucklandnz.com/auckland-index


• 

• 





 









 









 









 

 

 

 



 

 

 

. 



• 

• 











S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987





















S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987











S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987

S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987







S6(a),S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S6(a),S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S6(a),S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987







S6(a),S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



Page 1 
 

  Monthly Operating Performance – May 2025 

                                                     
  

 

 Key commentary 
The “Adjusted Budget” includes approved budget carry forwards, where elements of 
the budget from FY24 which were not spent in the year and Auckland Council has 
approved this unspent budget being transferred to FY25. 

A. Net Direct Expenditure is favourable for the 11 months to May 2025. 

B. Direct Revenue: TAU is favourable due to several Performing Arts events 
exceeding revenue targets year to date, strong Film Studio operating margins and 
Insurance recoveries, and Central Government funding for Project Ikuna, offset by 
Art Gallery visitor revenue and minor timing variances in grant revenue for Art 
Gallery. 

C. Staff Costs are unfavourable due to recognition of the significant impact of the 
group payroll correction, alongside additional resources required to cover the 
increase in commercial event activities including for Performing Arts. 

D. Grants, contributions and sponsorship is unfavourable due to Major Event 
Programme contracts in the current financial year from 2025/26. 

E. Other direct expenditure is favourable with reduced costs for Stadiums and Art 
Gallery due to reduced revenue activity, offset by additional Outsourced and 
Professional Services costs reflecting higher than planned activities and committing 
to a refreshed Performing Arts programme which is higher than planned.  

F. Steady progress made during the year with 80% of the adjusted total budget spent 
year to date. This has been achieved by robust forward planning and scheduling 
major works during venue closure periods, specifically at the Aotea Centre, Civic 
Theatre and Viaduct Events Centre.   

 


	1 Board 2 July 2025 - Agenda (public)
	7 Board 2 July 2025 - Register of Interests
	7.1 Board 2 July 2025 - 12 Month Rolling Calendar
	7 Board 2 July 2025 - 27 May 2025 - Public Minutes - final
	10 Board 2 July 2025 - Shareholder Comments on Draft SOI (1)
	PURPOSE − Te Pūtake
	BACKGROUND − He Whakamārama
	Recommendation
	FINANCIAL − Ngā take pūtea
	RISK − Ngā Tūraru
	LEGAL − Ngā take ture
	MĀORI OUTCOMES − Ngā Aronga Māori
	MARKETING, COMMS, GROWTH & LEVERAGE − Whakatairanga, Pāpāho, Whanaketanga, me te huanga

	10.1 Board 2 July 2025 - Shareholder Comments on Draft SOI - Attachment 1
	General shareholder comments to all CCOs
	Specific shareholder comments for TAU

	10.2 Board 2 July 2025 - Shareholder Comments on Draft SOI - Attachment 2
	10.3 Board 2 July 2025 - Shareholder Comments on Draft SOI - Attachment 3
	11 Board 2 July 2025 - CE Report_Redacted
	11.1 Board 2 July 2025 - Financial Performance Report



